
 

Posted on website: 2/13/2020 

Updated: Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk   

 

 
 

 

City of Potterville - Council Agenda  
Thursday, February 20, 2020 – 7:00 p.m. – Potterville City Hall, 319 N. Nelson Street 

A. Call to Order: 

 
B. Pledge of Allegiance: 

 

C. Roll Call: 
                    

D. Approval of Agenda 

 

E. Approval of Minutes 

a) Meeting minutes from January 16, 2020. 
b) Closed Session minutes from January 16, 2020. 

 
F. Peter Haefner – City Auditor: Year End June 30, 2019 Audit Review and Discussion. 

                                                                                                                                                                                 

G. Brandy Hatt – Zoning Board of Appeals Administrator 

a) Resolution No. 20-0220-01 – Resolution to Appoint Zoning Board of Appeals. 
b) Appoint Zoning Board of Appeals Applicants. 

 
H. Maureen Storie – Spring Clean-Up Presentation. 

 

I. Approval of Bills 

a) General Bills: $48,853.87 
 

J. Bank Reconciliations:  

a) July through December 2019 General Fund. 
b) January 2020 General Fund. 
c) December and January 2020 Tax. 

 

K. City Manager’s Report: Manager’s report in the February 2020 packet. 
 

L. Public Comment on agenda items: 

 

M. Commission/Committee Reports: Reports in the February 2020 packet.  
 

N. Department Reports: Administration- Department reports in the February 2020 packet. 
 

O. New Business: 

a) Budget and Truth and Taxation Hearing.  
b) Resolution No. 20-0220-02 – Resolution for the Adoption of the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget 

Amendments.  
c) Resolution No. 20-0220-03 – Resolution of General Appropriations Act and Establishment of the 

Tax Millage Rate for Solid Waste Collection Per Public Act 298 of 1917, MCL. 123.261, as 
Amended. 

d) Resolution No. 20-0220-04 – Resolution to Establish Election Inspectors and Receiving Board for 
the City of Potterville.  

e) Potterville Chamber of Business Membership Renewal.  



 

Posted on website: 2/13/2020 

Updated: Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk   

 

 
 

 

f) Resolution No. 20-2002-05 – Resolution of Support of the City of Potterville Grant Application to 
the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Communities Grant Program with 
Grant Match of $2,500 and Adoption of a Public Art Policy. 

g) Appoint BOR Member/Alternate, TIFA Member Applicant and Planning Commission Applicant. 
h) Approve Appointed Housing Commission Members.  

 

P. Public Comment on non-agenda items: 

 

Q. Communication from the Mayor and Council: 

 

R. Next Meeting: Thursday, March 19, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

S. Excuse absent member(s): 

 

T. Motion to Adjourn: 



 

 

  

City of Potterville - Council Minutes 

Thursday, January 16, 2020 – 7:00 p.m. – Potterville City Hall, 319 N. Nelson Street 

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Kring at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all.  
 

Roll Call:  Present: Mayor Kring, Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Smalley, Member Twichell,  
                                         Member Potter, Member Pulda, Member Nichols 
 

Approval of Agenda: Motion by Member Twichell to move public comment for non-agenda items, between items E. and 
F. on the agenda. Supported by Member Nichols. All in favor. Motion carried (7-0). Motion by Member Twichell to 
approve the agenda as amended. Supported by Deputy Mayor Lenneman. All in favor. Motion carried (7-0).  
 

Presentation – DPW Operator Certificate of Commendation: Mayor Kring presented a Certificate of Commendation 
to DPW Operator Charlie Cooper.  
 

Public Comment on non-agenda items:  

Jeff Bussard – 746 Brenneman Street spoke in regard to his application for the Planning Commission and Zoning Board of 
Appeals. He is interested in becoming a member of these committees and inquired as to when appointments would be 
made.  
Ben Cwayna – 1203 Candela Lane, Grand Ledge introduced himself and is running for District Court Judge. More 
information in regard to his campaign can be found at votebenforjudge.com.  
Katherine Schmidt – 221 N. Church Street spoke in regard to her application she submitted for the TIFA board and 
Zoning Board of Appeals. Also, suggested to the Zoning Board of Appeals be made up of half Council Members and the 

other half Citizens.  
 

Peter Haefner – City Auditor: Mr. Haefner was not present for the meeting. Motion by Member Twichell to table the 
City audit until the next Council meeting. Supported by Deputy Mayor Lenneman. All in favor. Motion carried (7-0).  
 

Approval of Minutes:  

a) Motion by Deputy Mayor Lenneman to approve the December 19, 2019 minutes. Supported by Member Nichols. 
All in favor. Motion carried (7-0).  

 
Approval of Bills: Motion by Member Twichell to approve the general bills in the amount of $37,938.15. Supported by 
Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Twichell, Mayor Kring, Member Potter, Member Pulda, Deputy 
Mayor Lenneman, Member Nichols. Nays: Member Smalley. Motion carried (6-1).  
 
Bank Reconciliations: Motion by Member Smalley to table the July 2019 bank reconciliation until the next Council 
meeting. Supported by Member Twichell. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Pulda, Mayor Kring, Member 
Smalley, Member Potter, Member Twichell, Member Nichols, Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Nays: None. Motion carried (7-
0). 
 
Public Comment on agenda items:  

Jeff Bussard – 746 Brenneman Street spoke in regard to the beginning balance on the bank reconciliations and he will 
refer to his files as to why it may be off. Also, spoke on the importance of bank reconciliation’s and that they need to be 
up to date.  
 
Commission/Committee Reports:  

Member Twichell spoke about the concern with having Council Member’s on the TIFA board in regard to forming a 
quorum. He stated that the attorney confirmed that this is not an issue.  
Deputy Mayor Lenneman spoke about the Parks Committee and stated a 2020 meeting calendar has been set. They 
determined they will keep the Christmas event date of the first Saturday in December. The Committee will be working 
with the church to combine the Easter egg hunt this year. The Spring clean-up has been set for April 18, 2020 at 10:00 



 

 

  

a.m. (if it is raining the date will be moved to the following Saturday). Discussion about the Memorial Day parade took 
place as well.   
 
Department Reports: Chief Barry gave an oral department report.  
 

New Business: 

a) Appoint Mayor and Deputy Mayor: Motion by Member Smalley to appoint Mayor Kring for an additional year as 
Mayor. Supported by Member Nichols. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Smalley, Mayor Kring, 
Member Pulda, Member Twichell, Member Nichols, Member Potter, Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Nays: None. 
Motion carried (7-0). Motion by Mayor Kring to appoint Member Lenneman to Deputy Mayor. Supported by 
Member Twichell. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Nichols, Mayor Kring, Member Twichell, Member 
Pulda, Member Smalley, Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Potter. Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0).  

b) Approve 2020 Council Meeting Calendar: Motion by Member Twichell to approve the 2020 Council meeting 
calendar. Supported by Deputy Mayor Lenneman. All in favor. Motion carried (7-0).  

c) Set and Approve 2020 City Committees: Motion by Mayor Kring to appoint Member Nichols to the Planning 
Commission. Supported by Deputy Mayor Lenneman. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Twichell, 
Member Smalley, Mayor Kring, Member Potter, Member Pulda, Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Nichols. 
Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0).  

d) Water Tower Pay Request #2: Motion by Member Twichell to approve the water tower pay request #2 in the 
amount of $19,800. Supported by Member Pulda. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Smalley, Member 
Potter, Member Pulda, Member Twichell, Member Nichols, Mayor Kring, Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Nays: 
None. Motion carried (7-0). 

e) Resolution No. 20-0116-01 – Resolution to Adopt Poverty Exemption Eligibility Requirements, Income 
Standards/Asset Test and Application for 2020: Motion by Deputy Mayor Lenneman to approve Resolution No. 
20-0116-01. Supported by Member Twichell. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Nichols, Mayor Kring, 
Member Twichell, Member Pulda, Member Smalley, Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Potter. Nays: None. 
Motion carried (7-0).  

f) Automatic utility bill payment distribution: Motion by Mayor Kring to approve the automatic payment of the 
Consumers Energy bills and WOW bills as they come in. Supported by Member Twichell. All in favor. Roll call 
vote. Ayes: Member Twichell, Member Smalley, Mayor Kring, Member Potter, Member Pulda, Deputy Mayor 
Lenneman, Member Nichols. Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0).  

g) Letter of Understanding – Police Holiday and Training Hours: Motion by Mayor Kring to table item g. until after 
closed session. Supported by Member Pulda. All in favor. Motion carried (7-0). Entered back into open meeting at 
8:22 p.m. Motion by Member Twichell to adopt the Letter of Understanding for the Police Department Holiday 
Schedule, to add Presidents Day and Veterans Day as paid holidays for the Police Department. Supported by 
Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member Twichell, Mayor Kring, Member Potter, Member Pulda, 
Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Nichols. Nays: Member Smalley. Motion carried (6-1). Motion by Deputy 
Mayor Lenneman to adopt the Police Department training schedule of 12 hours paid training when training is out 
of town, and to revert to the time clock for in town training. Supported by Member Pulda. All in favor. Roll call 
vote. Ayes: Member Smalley, Member Potter, Member Pulda, Member Twichell, Member Nichols, Mayor Kring, 
Deputy Mayor Lenneman. Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0).  

 
Closed Session: Motion by Mayor Kring to enter into closed session. Supported by Member Pulda. All in favor. Roll call 
vote. Ayes: Member Smalley, Mayor Kring, Member Pulda, Member Twichell, Member Nichols, Member Potter, Deputy 
Mayor Lenneman. Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0). Entered into closed session at 8:08 p.m. Motion by Mayor Kring to 
return from closed session to open meeting. Supported by Member Pulda. All in favor. Roll call vote. Ayes: Member 
Nichols, Mayor Kring, Member Twichell, Member Pulda, Member Smalley, Deputy Mayor Lenneman, Member Potter. 
Nays: None. Motion carried (7-0). Returned from closed session and entered into open meeting at 8:22 p.m.  
 

Communication from the Mayor and Council:  

Mayor Kring welcomed the new Council Member’s to their first meeting and asked how the MML training went.  
Member Potter thanked the City for allowing him to attend the MML training. He was very informed and plans to attend 
more training classes.  
Member Smalley thanked the City for allowing his attendance at the MML training. 



 

 

  

Deputy Mayor Lenneman thanked the Council for her appointment as Deputy Mayor.  
Member Twichell welcomed the new Council Member’s and also thanked the previous Member’s for their service.  
Mayor Kring thanked the Council for his appointment as Mayor.  
 

Next Meeting: Thursday, February 20, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Excuse Absent Member(s): None 
 
Motion to Adjourn: Motion by Deputy Mayor Lenneman to adjourn. Supported by Member Potter. All in favor. Motion 
carried (7-0).  
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk  

 
 
 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

1 

 

February 13, 2020 

To:  City Council 

From:  Aaron Sheridan, City Manager  

Subject: Manager’s Report 

Please see report items for this month and let me know if you have questions or comments. 

Thank you. 

1. The City’s TIFA Development Plan has been through its first round of Board edits and 

currently scheduled for Council review or “Step 6” - City Council Meeting, Public Hearing 

and Approval of Plan in April. At this meeting, the City Council will hold a public hearing 

on the TIFA Development and TIF Plan and receive input from the public. Williams & 

Works engineer Nathan Mehmed will be available at this meeting as a resource for 

Council and/or the public to discuss any aspect of the Plan document. The noticing 

requirements for the City Council public hearing are outlined in Sec. 317 of the TIFA Act 

(125.4317) and include a requirement of 20 days’ notice. City Hall will assist with the 

notice after the TIFA/City attorney reviews the entire Plan update to ensure compliance 

with the approval requirements of the Act, specifically when it comes to noticing taxing 

jurisdictions (Eaton County) and Resolution language. TIFA has made strides this quarter 

in completing its business items, and has made new TIFA materials online via the new City 

Website @ https://pottervillemi.org/tax-increment-financing-tifa/#1569971241002-

fe22258a-648b. New materials include the new TIFA and Development Plan Draft, FY 

Budget 2020, Bylaws, PA Act 57 Report showing except Revenues and Expenditures, 

minutes, and agendas.  

2. Per the City Treasurer and City Clerk’s report for this month, the City has reconciled the 

General, Tax and Payroll Bank Accounts with its Bank statements within a nominal amount 

of $351.71 or 0.0132% of the City’s “General” reconciled balance. The January 2020 

Reconciliation as presented to Council in your packet balances to the penny. The 

Management goal henceforth is for all financial staff to prioritize accurate and timely bank 

reconciliations throughout all months of the fiscal year. This priority directive from my 

Office includes the City Manager, City Clerk and City Treasurer job positions with the Clerk 

performing the lead as Chief Financial Officer. The Clerk duty shall have support from 

Manager and Treasurer as needed and when needed, to satisfy this long-term goal. As 

stated, the Clerk was successful in completing the January Bank Rec to the penny; and I’m 

extremely confident as a public Manager that the City’s Account balances to date are true 

and may be used in consideration of the 2019-2020 Fiscal Budget Amendments. 

3. The 2019-2020 Fiscal Year Budget Amendments are enclosed in the packet with the 

necessary Budget Adoption Resolution and Appropriation Act Resolution listing total 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

2 

 

General Fund Revenues and Expenditures for the remainder of the fiscal year. Legal 

Budget Hearing and Truth and Taxation Notice was published in the City’s newspaper of 

general circulation in accordance with law (County Journal), and Public Hearing shall 

proceed any consideration of adoption of the Fiscal Budget Departmental Budget (by 

Resolution). The Budget Amendments are comprehensive and performed under the new 

BS&A Financial Systems. Several General Fund (GF) Notable Revenue adjustments are 

State Shared Revenue Local Community Stabilization +$88,810, Transfers in from DDA 

Dissolution +$297,659, and Sale of Fixed Assets for +$24,885.  Notable GF Expenditure 

amendments are new levels of appropriations to the City’s Internal Service Fund 641 

entitled Equipment Repair & Replacement that is now budgeted to accumulate and 

allocate appropriate costs internally among the City’s various functions for Local Street, 

Major Street, Water and Sewer Fund activities of assets, depreciation, personnel and 

other attributable expenses. GF Departmental Appropriations are sub-totaled and listed 

by line item for your review. The aforementioned General Fund Fire Department 

appropriation of +$54,540 to Benton Township is seen for emergency services, and an 

increase to the Police Department for Capital Outlay (office design and demolition) and 

Salaries for consideration of a promotion of existing Officer to Chief with additional part-

time Police Officer are also included. If any Council would like to “drill down” into any line 

item amendment, I can provide more information or summary at any time. The proposed 

2019-2020 Budget Amendment as included in your Council packet and made available to 

the public fully fund anticipated expenditures and revenues for all public funds of the City 

and represent a balanced budget. Again, the Budget materials are prepared for your 

review and summary with Fund Department Totals that are adopted by Resolution. Lint 

Item amounts have also been supplied to you and the public. 

4. The City has completed a full survey of its real property boundaries across the street at 

310 North Nelson (DPW Facility), Veterans Park and vacant area off Dunbar Street. The 

new survey includes a full legal description for the Veteran Park area (Parcel A) and 

DPW/Park/Police area (Parcel B) that have been recorded with the Eaton County Register 

of Deeds. The survey is the next step in a preliminary plan for highest and best use of your 

owned properties across the street. I’ve reached out to a local builder and performed a 

site walkthrough with Officer Betts, Don Stanley and Contractor to generate a preliminary 

layout and cost estimate for a modest Police office space and parking.  I strongly 

recommend that any developmental plan of these areas laid out in the Survey, should be 

considered holistically, as they are conjoined, and shall impact the future uses of the 

other. Any plans involving public access should consider architectural services (as 

required for gov. use), “ADA” design features and modern-day construction codes. Note 

that any office project would also involve removal of a utility pole obstructing the center 

of the ingress/egress area of the proposed office. The flow of incompatible use onsite 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

3 

 

such as public vehicle with pedestrian traffic and DPW heavy machinery, needs to be 

considered if changes and/or improvements are to be designed and approved by Council. 

Issues like safety, code compliance, “ADA” access and parking (past, present and future) 

are a priority, and must be considered with public changes in use. 

5. Parks and Recreation staff has applied for two public grants for 1) DNR Recreation 

Passport Grant intended for development of “ADA” access to Sunset Hills Park facilities, 

and 2) Public Art Grant from Lansing Economic Area Partnership with matching Public 

Funds to be provided from City TIFA for art at Lake Alliance. The applications would be 

the City’s and are contingent upon Council Resolutions of Support with a deadline of April 

1st. Resolution for the Art grant is provided in your packet. The DNR grant Resolution of 

Support is targeted for next month. Please note - The LEAP Public Art Grant relies upon 

support and adoption of the City Public Art Policy as a prerequisite for acquisition and 

maintenance of public art. This is included as an Exhibit B in the Resolution of Support. 

6. As reported to Council this month, the City’s Well exploration project is scheduled to 

proceed at MDOT property with the low bidder Raymers, Inc. The City’s Engineer Dan 

Whalen should be able to analyze test results of this drill for quality and quantity of 

water suitable for a Type I production well. After this phase of the project is complete, 

he may be able to generate an informed opinion regarding the feasibility of the location 

for a second test drill and/or a production well. According to Williams and Works 

Engineer Brandon Mieras, Radium 226 and Radium 228 that are known to exist in the 

region’s water supply, are of some concern because of the relatively long half-life of 

each, and they emit an alpha particle that can damage tissue in the body if ingested and 

stored (20% ingested is stored). Alpha particles typically can’t penetrate skin and can be 

stopped by as little as an inch air. Radium is a naturally occurring radioactive element 

present in varying amounts in rocks and soil within the earth’s crust, particularly in the 

bedrock. Public water supply wells (such as those in this project) are often drilled much 

deeper and into the bedrock than shallow Type III residential wells, so the wells are 

where the Radium is going to be - if it’s present. In summary, the chief concern with 

these isotopes in this region is not much their existence per se, but their concentration 

of maximum contaminant level (MCL) or concentration per million in a liter of water or 

micrograms intended or to be sourced for public consumption. If the Radium quantity 

tests too high or too near MCL levels, then Council with the Engineer’s analysis will have 

an opportunity to review cost effective options not limited to exploring other sites 

and/or methods of Radium treatment.  

 

















City of Potterville 
 

City Clerk Report 
 

February 2020 
 

 Currently I am preparing for the March 2020 Election. I have completed the 
Election Inspector refresh course and also completed additional training for ballot 
test decks and 2020 Elections. There will be another training class with the 
County at the end of February. The preliminary test of the ballots was completed 
on February 4th and I had no issues with the ballots. The Public Accuracy test will 
be held on February 25th at 10:00 a.m. City Hall will be open on March 7th from 
9:00-5:00 for voter registration and AV ballots. This day is dedicated strictly for 
voters and those looking to register to vote.   

 The new website went live on January 24th. A few adjustments were needed and 
a meeting with the vendor was held on February 3rd for training. The goal now is 
to start posting the Council meetings and packets on the website.  

 The auditor was here to work on bank reconciliations from July-December 2019. 
Aaron and myself spent some time working through January 2020 and we were 
able to reconcile to the penny.  
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



















Benton Township Fire Department 
         4713 Hartel Road 

            Potterville, MI 48876 

                Business 517-645-7061 * Fax 517-645-7074 
 

 

Proudly Serving Benton Township & the City of Potterville 

Monthly Report 

January 2020 

 

 
Operational Information: 

 E-211 received a Complete Service including Fluid Change, Pump Test, DOT Inspection, 

pump repairs, brake chambers replaced, seat belt replaced 

 A-111 Oil Change & Serviced 

 EC Fire & EMS Departments are still planning to change to the new 800 Mhz radio system on 

February 10th, 2020. BTFD has completed the radio & pager training. Portable Radios and 

Pagers will be issued to BTFD staff the first week of February. Mobile radios are scheduled to 

be installed in the apparatus in March 2020  

 Eaton County – MABAS Quadrant Response Cards 

 BTFD Staff instructed a Fire Safety Program for staff & residents at a local apartment 

complex  

 Overhead Projector in BTFD classroom was replaced 

 

Training: 

 800 MHz radio training, multiple classes were offered @ BTFD 

 

Meetings & Special Events: 

 ECCD Fire & EMS radio & pager cutover meeting 

 Eaton County – MABAS  

 Tri County Emergency Medical Control Board Directors  

 

Calls For Service (CFS): 

 Fire - 8 City of Potterville, 9 Benton Township, 3 Mutual Aid  

 EMS – 25 City of Potterville, 14 Benton Township, 27 Mutual Aid  





Parks & Recreation Report 

February 2020 

 

 Parks: 
o Musco Sports Lighting will be here towards the end of February. The weather has 

not been cooperating well as the ground has been too wet to get the lift on the 

fields to reach those lights. A return trip has been scheduled. We hope that the 

weather will cooperate, and the ground will be solid so the fields/grounds will not 

get damaged by the lift. Also, wire harnesses needed to be ordered as to why 

some of the lights would not work. Meaning, that some light bulbs did not burn 

out. It was the wires from the box that travels to the light bulbs that were aged or 

damaged.  
o The new City’s website is live. I sat in on the meeting with the City Clerk and 

website developer and understood concepts of the website. 
o Still reaching out to book all our fields 
o Parks Committee held their annual meeting. In discussion were events and grants. 

We are partnering with Sycamore Creek Church for an Easter Event this year. A 

great opportunity of partnership and building community. Grants for this year is a 

Public Art Grant and a Recreation Passport Grant. 
o Parks & Recreation Director attended webinars at the end of January that went 

into a little bit more detail on each of the DNR grants application. 
o We have applied for an art grant that is part of the Lansing Economic Area 

Partnership (LEAP) program. They will be awarding three grants to municipality, 

business or organization to commission, that create and install a piece of public 

art for year-round public display. An ideal location is on the North West side of 

Lake Alliance Park on a knoll. It is highly visible from traffic and pedestrians and 

the park gets utilize year-round. This will attract and retain visitors to the City and 

businesses. Both the City Manager and Parks & Recreation Director worked on 

completed this grant. An Art Policy will need to be adopted as part of the 

requirement for LEAP. 
o We are in the progress of applying for a DNR Recreation Passport Grant for 

Sunset Hills Park. This entails connecting the sidewalks on the park side, adding a 

parking lot for off-street parking that will meet ADA standards and creating 

pathways to the bench and picnic shelter behind the play structure. That is phase 

one of the projects. The purpose of applying is making it accessible for all ages 

and abilities and providing a safe parking environment. Phase two is entailing a 

half-court basketball court that can be utilized as a multi-course for Sunset Hills 

residents and for the community of Potterville.  
 Parks & Recreation Director has meet with the engineer for an illustrative 

concept of a layout and estimated cost. 
 Both the City Manager and Parks & Recreation Director are working on 

this to complete.  

 



 

 Recreation: 
o Program registrations will be going out this month and will be posted in the 

newspaper, City Hall, schools, website. Our goal is to have increasing numbers of 

participants and volunteer coaches.  
o Parks & Recreation Director went to the Baseball Pony League Meeting this 

month. There are some rule changes for our division that we played in last year, 

and cut-off dates. We are looking forward to the 2020 Season. 
o In coordination with the Potterville’s Softball Coach we are working together to 

get a softball team into a league this year. In addition, to having the Potterville 

Softball and Baseball Varsity Teams play a double header under the lights out at 

Lake Alliance Park. The Coach is hoping to get Charlotte on board and make it 

become an annual thing, where every other year it will be played at Lake Alliance 

and maybe a possibility of more depending on how this turns out.  

 

Respectfully Submitted By: 

 

Tiffani Schaner 

Parks & Recreation Director 

 

 



City of Potterville 

 
 
 

319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 
Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 

 
 

“City of Helping Hands” 

February 13, 2020 
 
 
To: City of Potterville Council Members 
 
From: Brandy Hatt, Zoning Administrator 
 
Re: Current Projects 
 
 
Below is a list of the projects I am currently working on for the City of Potterville.  Please keep in mind, these 
projects do not include the day to day commutations or projects with property owners located in the City of 
Potterville. 
 

 Recodification of City of Potterville Code of Ordinances:  We are still in the process of locating the necessary 
documents to send to Municode.  Significant progress has been made in the past month and some 
documents have been sent to Municode for review.   

 Deed research for properties owned by the City of Potterville:  While attempting to correct property lines of 
some of our properties (DDA Pavilion), discrepancies were discovered.  I am working to resolve this issue.  
In addition, I am working to obtain all deeds for all properties owned by and sold by the City of Potterville.  

 Surveying of DPW property: This project is now complete.  The survey has been recorded with Eaton 
County Register of Deeds.     

 Zoning Ordinance Update:  I have received a proposal from Williams and Works to update the Zoning 
Ordinance; however, but I have countered the proposal.  I hope to have an updated proposal to submit to 
the Planning Commission for review and approval at their February 18, 2020 meeting.   

 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Update: Williams and Works submitted a dollar amount for the CIP update, 
but did not give a written proposal to be reviewed by the Planning Commission.  I have requested a written 
proposal to be submitted and reviewed by the Planning Commission at their February 18, 2020 meeting.   

 City of Potterville Sign:  I have a meeting scheduled for February 19th with a property owner to discuss 
obtaining property to relocate our city sign which is currently located on Mr. Joe Bristol’s property.   

 City of Potterville Zoning Board of Appeals: Our attorney has drafted a resolution to be considered by City 
Council to create a Zoning Board of Appeals separate from City Council.  City Council will consider the 
resolution at their February 20th meeting.  I have also given recommendation to Mr. Aaron Sheridan 
regarding appointments to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  City of Potterville Zoning Board of Appeals 
(Council) will meet on Thursday, February 20, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. to discuss ZBA-2-20-1.    

 City Forms:  I am working creating new Land Division, Subdivision, Lot Line Adjustment, and Lot 
Combination Applications. 

 Gizzard Fest 2020: Due to significant public interest, the City of Potterville will submit a Special Event Permit 
Application to host Gizzard Fest during the weekend of July 10, 2020.   
 

 
Please feel free to contact me directly with any questions or concerns.  I can be reached by calling (517) 281-5659 
or e-mail Zoning@pottervillemi.org.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Personal property statements were sent to local businesses in January and are now 

coming back in. The majority of businesses within the City are eligible for the Small 

Business Taxpayer Exemption (MCL 211.9o).  

Economic Condition Factors and Land Values have been finalized to set assessed 

values for the year. 

2020 assessment notices will be going out in the mail to taxpayers by February 24th. 

March Board of Review will be held Monday, March 9th: 9am-3pm and Wednesday, 

March 11th: 3pm-9pm. 

 

Thanks, 

 

Sarah Payton, MAAO 



 

 

 

 
  

 

CITY OF POTTERVILLE  

RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Resolution No. 20-0220-01 

 At a meeting of the City Council of the City of Potterville, Eaton County, Michigan 

("City"), held at the City Hall, 319 N. Nelson Street, Potterville, Michigan 48876, on the 20th 

day of February, 2020, at 7:00 p.m.  

 

PRESENT: ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

The following preamble and resolution was offered by 

____________________________and seconded by ________________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, the City has the powers and duties to create a zoning board of appeals 

pursuant to the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, PA 110 of 2006 et seq (the "Act"); and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 601 of the Act and section 24.02 of the City's Zoning Ordinance 

permit the City Council to either serve as the zoning board of appeals or to appoint members to 

the zoning board of appeals by a majority vote; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has been serving as the City’s zoning board of appeals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City believes that it is in the best interest of its residents to appoint 

members to the zoning board of appeals rather than having the City Council serve as the zoning 

board of appeals. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Potterville, Eaton County, 

Michigan, resolves as follows:   

 

1. As soon as members are appointed and serving on the City’s zoning board of 

appeals, the City Council shall no longer act in the capacity of the zoning board of appeals. 

 

2. Pursuant to the authority granted by the Act and Section 24.02.1 of the City's 

Zoning Ordinance, the City Council shall, not later than March 31, 2020, appoint five (5) 

members to the zoning board of appeals. Appointments shall be for a period of one (1), two (2), 

and three (3) years, respectively, so as nearly as may be to provide for the appointment of an 

equal number each year. One (1) appointed member of the zoning board of appeals shall be a 

member of the City's Planning Commission who holds no other municipal office. 

 

3. Pursuant to the authority granted by the Act and Section 24.02.2 of the City's 

Zoning Ordinance, the City Council shall, not later than March 31, 2020, appoint not more than 



 

 2 

two alternates to the zoning board of appeals.  The term for each alternate shall commence when 

appointed and shall terminate on the first day of January after each regular city election. 

 

4. Any resolution inconsistent with this Resolution is hereby rescinded but only to 

the extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect.    

 

YEAS:  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:  ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

) ss.  

COUNTY OF EATON ) 

 

 I, the undersigned duly qualified City Clerk of the City of Potterville, Eaton County, 

Michigan, do certify the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 

City Council of the City of Potterville at a meeting held on the 20th day of February, 2020.   

 

 

              

       Stephanie Wilson 

City Clerk 

27468:00001:4625433-3 

 



 

 

CITY OF POTTERVILLE  

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0220-02 

RESOLUTION FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE  

2019-2020 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

 

 

WHEREAS, on this 20th day of February 2020 the City Council of the City of Potterville, 

Michigan, met to discuss the 2019-2020 BUDGET AMENDMENTS provided by the City 

Manager containing up to date amended revenues and expenditures for the Budget fiscal year July 

1, 201 to June 30, 2020, which includes Rural Development Bond Funds and the Sunset Hills Bond 

Funds, has been presented to the City Council for consideration; and 

 

PRESENT: ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT: _____________________________________________________________________ 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of Potterville, Michigan that the 2019-

2020 Budget Amendments be adopted for the City of Potterville effective immediately; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Potterville City Council that the detailed amended 2019-

2020 Amended Budget, shall be adopted by Department and include all amended Department 

totals for the City of Potterville attached to this Resolution as “Exhibit A.” 

 

The above Resolution was offered by_________________ and supported by _______________. 

 

AYES: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Potterville, Eaton 

County Michigan DO HERBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of 

certain proceeding taken by the City Council of said City at regular meeting held on the February 

20th 2020.  

 

 

_____________________________ ____________ 

Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk  Date     



 
CITY OF POTTERVILLE  

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0220-03 

 

RESOLUTION OF GENERAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT AND ESTABLISHMENT OF 

THE TAX MILLAGE RATE OF 11.9867 FOR THE 2020 TAX PERIOD BEGINNING 

JULY 1, 2019 AND MILLAGE RATE OF 1.5 TO BE LEVIED ON TAXABLE 

VALUATION AS EQUALIZED FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION PER PUBLIC 

ACT 298 OF 1917, MCL. 123.261, AS AMENDED. 

 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Potterville, Eaton County, Michigan, held 
at the City Hall in said City on the 20th day of February, 2020, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Present: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
The following Resolution was offered by ___________________ and seconded by 
_______________________. 
 

WHEREAS, City Council of the City of Potterville has the authority and obligation to 
adopt an annual Fiscal Budget and is required by THE TRUTH IN TAXATION ACT of 1982 
which complies with Section 16 of the Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act;  
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Potterville adopts the 2019-2020 
Fiscal Year Budget by Department, and that this public act shall be considered a General 
Appropriations Act, and that approval that General Fund Departmental expenditures and 
revenues as authorized up to, but not to exceed, the total amounts listed below of: 

 
  Fund    Revenues  Expenditures 

 
General Fund   $1,388,263.35   $1,388,263.35 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,  City Council of the City of Potterville establishes that 

the 2020 Millage Rate of 11.9867 be adopted for the City of Potterville and shall be collected by 
the taxable property tax levy of 11.9867 mills, beginning July 1, 2019; and an additional 1.5 
mills to be levied on the taxable valuation as equalized for solid waste collection per Public Act 
298 of 1917, MCL 123.261, as amended.  
 
Adopted: 
 
 Yeas: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Nays: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF EATON  ) 



 
CLERK’S CERTIFICATE 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Potterville, Eaton 
County Michigan DO HERBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of 
certain proceeding taken by the City Council of said City at regular meeting held on the February 
20th 2020.  
 
 
_____________________________ ____________ 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk  Date     

 



1 

 

CITY OF POTTERVILLE 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-0220-04 

RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH ELECTION INSPECTORS AND RECEIVING BOARD 

FOR THE CITY OF POTTERVILLE. 

At a regular meeting of the City Council for the City of Potterville, Eaton County, Michigan, 

held at the City Hall in the City of Potterville on the 20th of February, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. to 

discuss the appointment for the Election Inspectors and a Receiving Board.  

PRESENT: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 

ABESENT: ___________________________________________________________________ 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Potterville, Michigan, that 

the following Election Inspectors are here by appointed to work the March 10, 2020 Election.  

Judy Lenneman    Katherine Schmidt     Jeff Bussard     Elizabeth Ross     Donald Ross  

Georgia Fry    Wanda Fitzhugh 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Potterville, Michigan, the 

following Election Inspectors are hereby appointed as a Receiving Board for the March 10, 2020 

Election. 

Katherine Schmidt     Elizabeth Ross 

The undersigned certifies that this is a true copy of the appointments for the Election Inspectors 

and Receiving Board for the City of Potterville according and adopting in the forgoing. 

The above Resolution 20-0220-02 was offered by Member _________________ and Supported 

by Member __________________.   

    

AYES: ______________________________________________________________________  

 

NAYS: ______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

ABSTAIN: ____________________________________________________________________ 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.  

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

COUNTY OF EATON 

 

 



2 

 

 

 

Clerk’s Certificate 

 

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Potterville, County of Eaton, State of Michigan, at a regular Council meeting 

held on February 20, 2020 and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting 

was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, and that the minutes of 

said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said ACT.                         

 

______________________________     _________ 

Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk                   Date 



Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses 

Potterville - City of Helping Hands 
   

Mission: To build the bridges between the area businesses, local government, 

the schools, and churches, and to create an inviting place to live, educate and 

have fun. 

  

January 22, 2020 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

The executive committee would like to thank our current members for their support and participation in the 

Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses. We would also like give a warm welcome to our new members. It is 

our hope that we continue to grow and be impactful in Potterville in the years to come. Our meetings typically 

take place throughout the year on the first Wednesday of each month. 

 

Attached is membership application and dues schedule. Please fill out the form and mail it with your member 

dues to:  

Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses 

P.O. Box 76 

Potterville, MI 48876  

 

You can also give your form and dues to Loren Smalley, the Chamber treasurer, at the next Chamber meeting 

on February 5, 2020 at noon at Sycamore Creek Church. 

 

 

Thank you for your continued support. 

 

Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses  

Pennie Lake, President  

Mark Aupperlee, Vice President  

Kathy Dobie, Secretary  

Loren Smalley, Treasurer  

 

www.pottervillechamber.com 

 



Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses 

Potterville - City of Helping Hands 
   

Mission: To build the bridges between the area businesses, local government, 

the schools, and churches, and to create an inviting place to live, educate and 

have fun. 

  

MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION / Membership Renewal 
The Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses would like to thank you for your support in 2019 and invite you 

renew your membership, or join our organization.  The meetings are typically held on the first Wednesday of 

each month at 12:00 PM at Sycamore Creek Church – Potterville Campus, located at 105 N. Church St., 

Potterville.  Everyone is welcome to attend.   

  

We celebrate the accomplishments of the past year, and take pride in the support we provide for the 

improvement of Potterville, and including the following:  

• Potterville/Benton Township Fire Department Christmas stocking program  

• Community Easter Egg Hunt 

• Back-To-School Bash 

• Potterville Food Bank  

• Community holiday gift baskets 

• Promoting the City of Potterville  

• Welcoming new businesses into the community 

• Sponsoring the welcome to Potterville sign 

• Network opportunities to share your business/organization  

• Introduced our new website!  Check it out at https://www.pottervillechamber.com/ 

 

ANNUAL DUES (January 1 - December 31) 

• 1 to 5 employees   $50.00 

• 6 to 15 employees   $60.00  

• 16 or more employees   $75.00 

• Non-Profit Organizations  $40.00 

 

PLEASE RETURN BOTTOM OF THIS FORM WITH YOUR 2020 DUES. THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT. 

 

 

Name of Organization: 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Mailing Address:  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

City/State/Zip: 

 ________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone E-Mail Address:  

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Representative's Name (Contact Person for Your Business/Organization if different from above) 

 

Please make checks payable to the Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses and mail to P.O. Box 76, Potterville, 

MI 48876 or give to Loren Smalley, Treasurer.  

         (Membership renewal form 01.22.2020) 

https://www.pottervillechamber.com/


 
 
 
 

The City of Potterville 2020 Grant Application to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Communities Program. 

 
 

January 31st 2020 



Lake Alliance - Public Art Primary Site Location 

 



1 
 

City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

January 30th 2020 
 
To:  Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) 
 
From:  Tiffani Schaner, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Subject: 2020 City Application to the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public 

Art for Communities Grant Program. Deadline January 31st 2020 
 
 
Introduction: 
 
The purpose of this project is to present engaging tools to increase the public’s draw to the City 
and its premier park at Lake Alliance Park. This park is unique to the area, and hosts annual softball 
leagues and tournaments known to attract hundreds of visitors and amateur softball participants in 
a single weekend. It is located within the City’s Tax Increment Finance Authority’s Development 
area that has recently finished construction of a baseball stadium and field, adjacent to the high 
traffic corridor of Lansing Road.    
 
Public Art Policy: 
 
To help guide the new Public Art Program, the City has generated a Public Art Policy to be 
included for adoption on its next public agenda. The City Council and Board of Directors of the 
City Tax Increment Finance Authority (TIFA) have also scheduled Resolutions of Support 
including match amounts, to appear on their public agendas for adoption in February. Drafts of 
these Resolutions shall be enclosed with this application. If an award of the LEAP Public Art for 
Communities is provided to the City, it would kick start a new Public Art Program and satisfy 
“placemaking” goals and objectives of professional plans including the 5 Year Parks Plan, 
Community Master Plan, and TIFA Development Plan.    
 
The City of Potterville has an active Parks Committee that shall act as the City “Ad-Hoc 
Committee” for its Public Art Program. The Parks Committee will collaborate with the City 
Manager and City Council to display and attract local artist(s) and art piece(s) under guidance of 
an adopted Public Art Policy, also provided with this application.  
 
Funding and Support:  
 
The Parks Committee, City Council and TIFA Board Members of Directors are pursuing this grant 
cooperatively with intent to fund a match of 25% of funds upon approval of Resolutions of Support 
(w/match amounts). Again, these Resolutions are scheduled to appear on their public agendas 
February 4th, February 17th and February 20th respectively. Upon acceptance of the grant, the City 
plans to seek matching dollars with a combination of in-kind services though a letter writing 
campaign and crowdfunding from residents, and local and regional businesses owners who may 



2 
 

benefit from increased in public draw to the area. Regional businesses include large corporations 
such as Walmart, Team One Chevrolet, Dick’s Sporting Goods, and Tractor Supply.  
 
Social Media community is vital to the decision-making process of the City. Interaction and input 
it receives from the public, go hand in hand with developmental goals and planning. The City 
intend to approach its social media followers and apply known crowdfunding mechanisms such as 
Facebook and GoFundme.com to supplement the Public Art Program. Local markets can be 
earmarked with this type of campaign and include 54 active businesses, organizations and 
associations. This includes the Potterville Masonic Lodge, Chamber of Commerce, McDonald’s 
Corporation, Colonial Estates to name a few. Private contributions to the City’s Public Art 
Program are qualified as a tax-deductible. 
 
Timeline for Commission and Installation: 
 
For the installation of a public art piece, we have laid out the below timeline: 
 

• LEAP “RFP” Open for Submission: October 11, 2019 - January 31, 2020 

• Review of received proposals: January 31, 2020 - February 15, 2020 

• Press Event/Announcement: March 2020 

• Funded Community Art Committees Convene to write Artist RFP: Week of March 3, 2020 

• Community Call to Artists RFP Open for Submissions: March- May 2020 

• Choose Artist/Enter into contract with Artist: May 2020 

• Fabrication of Art Piece: June- September 2020 

• Unveiling of Art Piece/Press Event: October 2020 
 
Placemaking Efforts: 
 
Potterville is located just south of Michigan’s State Capital on I-69 in Eaton County with a thriving 
community of population growth and development. It has recently completed over 18 million 
dollars in public infrastructure improvements, and numerous professional plans with Williams & 
Works Civil Engineers that outlay “placemaking” activities like public art installation as a means 
to increase business development and attract visitors to Potterville - “The City of Helping Hands”. 
To connect residents and visitors to public art is a major goal (and strategy) of known 
“placemaking” efforts planned by the City and TIFA. Doing so at Lake Alliance Park will magnify 
positive results of this placemaking by connecting the most people to art. 
 
Art Location: 
 
A high priority is placing art at the entrance of Lake Alliance Park. It would be installed on the 
North West side of the main entrance on a knoll, visible from both directions of traffic on Lansing 
Road.  This is an ideal location as it will bring more visitors as they commute to their day to day 
travels in and around Potterville. City has additional plans of placing artwork throughout the park 
that draws visitors toward Lake Alliance. The City’s Lake Alliance Park entrance has been 
identified as an ideal space where art could increase the number of people visiting the park, and 
promote a culture of public art, creativity, and feel of a shared experience among park users. Refer 
to the enclosed map of the entrance of the park to see this location. The entrance to the park has 
potential with line of sight to Lansing Road, but lacks excitement, engagement, and a certain 
inviting feel. The City and TIFA plan to improve the entrance by making it more inviting and 
welcoming to all visitors.  



3 
 

Lake Alliance Park sits on approximately 66 acres with a 24-acre lake that is open to the public 
year-round. Amenities include a lighted softball complex, a lighted high school regulation baseball 
field, non-motorized trails, nature trails, pavilion shelters, a Disc Golf Course and more. As stated, 
softball and baseball tournaments are held regularly on weekends with visitors from all over 
Michigan and the Mid-West. It receives a high volume of traffic (vehicles and pedestrians) from 
tournaments and programs during the Spring, Summer and Fall months of the year.  
 
The traffic count in 2018 from MDOT’s NTFA map shows that an Annual Average Daily Traffic 
(AADT) of 6,278 which is an increase from 2017 of 6,234. For the 2019 year, the traffic count has 
yet to be accounted for, but the NTFA map shows that the AADT for 2019 is 6,538.  The 
tournaments and programs that take place at Lake Alliance Park has seen an increase in pedestrians 
as well. For the 2019 year, the City recorded 337 teams for tournaments that consist of an average 
16 players per team. This is a total pedestrian count about 5,392, that is in addition to our recreation 
programs with about 100 pedestrians. Both counts equal a total of about 5,492 park users. In 2018, 
the ball tournaments held at Lake Alliance saw 303 teams with 16 players per team for a pedestrian 
count of 4,848 in addition to our programs that brought in about 60 pedestrians for a total of about 
4,908. This does not include daily visitors that come to the park. As noted, this park is highly 
utilized, a wide variety of targeted demographics come and go. Adding art will promote a new and 
innovative culture to the park. 
 
Site Preparation Outline: 
 
The physical foundation development of the art is planned to be constructed with compacted 
aggregated, asphalt or concrete displays pedestals or pads, depending on the artwork. The artists 
proposal shall clearly outline what suits it for display and maintenance. Regular maintenance will 
be performed by the DPW Staff in combination with private contractors as funded by the City 
General Fund and Parks Fund.   
 
Maintenance Outline: 
 
Regular park maintenance and security are in place and funded by the City of Potterville General 
Fund. City Departments of the General Fund are funded by City’s General Operation Tax and 
development funds as provided from time to time by the City TIFA. Together, these resources are 
planned to maintain Lake Alliance Park and public art to a high standard. DPW Staff makes routine 
visits and maintenance checks to Lake Alliance Park daily during operation hours. Police patrol 
during the weekdays and on the weekends when the park is in high usage. Art piece as defined in 
a “RFP” and/or any proposal from the artist will be under the City’s insurance/liability upon final 
installation. The City has a coverage of $25,000 for damages to City property and a deductible of 
$250. The art piece once processed will be covered in the City’s general liability insurance policy. 
If additional coverage is needed for the art, it will be determined by all parties involved as to what 
is deemed the best additional coverage. As for the budget, an anticipated total of about $12,500 
could be expected for each grant award. Maintenance and lighting expenses could be appropriated 
to the existing Park budget. The City may choose plan to contribute general DPW activities 
associated with materials and preparation of its public art site - whether that is a podium needed, 
cement slab, or installation of a plaque after a project is completed.  Per the Public Art Policy, the 
City would plan to maintain it public art pieces. 
 
 
 





City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

1 

 

PUBLIC ART POLICY 

PURPOSE 

The placement of public art adds to the unique character and quality of life of a community. Public art can 

straighten civic identify, community pride, and create a cultural economy.  By adding public art to an 

otherwise ordinary space, it can introduce a surprising, unexpected and energizing element. Public art has 

the capacity to humanize our urban and suburban environment. 

Public art can be the foundation for the creation of a “sense of place” in a public space.  Placemaking as it 

is known in planning is known to promote people’s health, happiness, and wellbeing.  Developing a sense 

of place helps people identify with their region and with each other and thus creates a sense of community.  

Create placemaking animates public spaces, rejuvenates structures and streetscapes, improves local 

business viability and public safety, and brings diverse people together to be inspired. 

Ultimately, the goal of placemaking and the use of public art is to create a feeling that our community is a 

special place and distinct from anywhere else. With this policy, the City Parks Committee and City Council 

seeks to provide opportunity for creating exciting and attractive public spaces that are used and enjoyed by 

Potterville residents, workers, businesses, and visitors. 

GOALS 

The Community is committed to providing public art of exceptional quality that adds to the community 

vibrancy and identity. The Community strives to: 

• Use public art to help express the Community’s history and cultural heritage. 
• Foster the public’s understanding and enjoyment of the public art. 

• Use public art as a means to foster the community’s sense of spirit, pride, and development. 
• Enrich the quality of life for the community and the region by creating exciting, appealing, and 

harmonious public spaces. 

• Integrate public art into new community facilities. 

• Enhance the Community image locally, regionally and nationally. 

• Recognize public art’s contribution in economic development. 

PUBLIC ART COVERED 

Public art, as defined by this policy, encompasses the broadest definition of visual art including the 

imaginative use and interplay of all artistic disciplines. Public art determined by council to be governed by 

this policy shall be visually or physically accessible to the public. This shall include all art acquired by 

County Funds/Grants, donated to the Community and/or provided by a private entity for community benefit. 

PARKS COMMITTEE 

As needed, the Parks Committee shall review the City’s public art policy activities and provide 

recommendations to the Parks & Recreation Director, City Manager and/or City Council regarding the 

Public Art Policy. For the purposes of the Policy, The Parks Committee shall expect to provide informed 

input and written recommendations, regarding determinations of the Policy as provided by the City 

Manager and City Council.  Recommendation of the Parks Committee may include but are not limited to 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

2 

 

public art site locations, releasing RFPs for artwork, selection of winning artists and/or awards, contracts 

with artists of public art, fabrication, assembly, placement, and/or coordination and dedication of art pieces.  

The Parks Committee shall be a recommending body to the City Manager and City Council for the purposes 

of this Policy.  The Parks Committee should be comprised of an informed and diverse group of citizens 

representing Potterville City neighborhoods, businesses, associations, artists, architects, landscape 

architects, engineers, urban designers, etc. All members of the Parks Committee should be free of conflict 

of interest or the potential for financial gain. 

ART SELECTION PROCESS 

The phases below outline a suggested program for carrying out a public art project.  These phases are 

intended to be guidelines, as it is recognized that each Committee of public art is unique, and adjustments 

will need to be tailored to each individual project. 

Phase One: Creation of Request for Proposals (RFP). The City Manager shall seek written recommendation 

of the Parks Committee for a Public Art RFP(s) to be reviewed and considered by City Council for 

approval/denial. In regard to this Policy, all authorized RFPs for Public Art Projects must be presented to 

Parks Committee and approved by City Council. 

• Prior to the draft RFP by the City Manager, the Parks Committee shall meet to assess the 

specific needs, requirements and expectations of the public art installation.  It is 

recommended that the Parks Committee establish scoring criteria to be included in any 

Public Art RFP. This scoring criteria should be provided to the City Manager for inclusion 

in the RFP draft to be considered for approval/denial by City Council. 

• With agreement and approval on the RFP and Public Art Project, the Manager shall send 

out the approved RFP to artists that includes project specifics regarding the location, style 

or nature of the placement, type and theme of project, and a budget.  The RFP shall be 

distributed to artists locally, throughout Michigan and nationally, to encourage equal 

opportunity and cultural diversity. 

• Applicants may be asked for the following: 
➢ Small scale model or rough draft of a three-dimensional work (when appropriate 

as determined by the City) or complete drawing of a two-dimensional work. 

➢ Drawings or photographs that demonstrate the relationship of the artwork to the 

site. 

➢ Material samples for the artwork and any relevant construction materials. 

➢ Installation details.  

➢ Description of routine maintenance and estimate of maintenance costs 

➢ Artist’s resume. 
➢ Statement of Interest of the project from Artist. 

➢ Budget. 

Phase Two: Artist Selection and Contracts.  Proposed gifts, loans, creation, and selection of Public Art will 

be reviewed by the City Council with a recommendation of the Parks Committee for final action. The 

following criteria will be used in any recommendation: 

• Use of local artists. 

• Quality and condition of the artwork. 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

3 

 

• Context in the Community’s collection. For example, Does the artwork enhance the existing 

collection and/or add diversity of inventory or art on hand. Or both? 

• How does the piece engage the public? 

• Are the materials appropriate/safe/beneficial for public use? All age groups and demographics? 

• Is the piece more or less susceptible to vandalism or graffiti? 

• Durability of artwork. 

• Ability to maintain the artwork. 

• Aesthetic merit. 

City Public Art Contracts shall be agreed to in writing and authorized by all interested parties regarding 

ownership and/or use of Public Art. They shall be considered legal contracts and executed by the City 

Manager upon review of the City Attorney and authorization of City Council. Art ownership shall be 

transferred to the City at the time of installation with no rights remaining with the artists. The contract 

should protect the City from the artists duplicating the exact work for sale to others unless agreed to in the 

Contract with appropriate considerations for proceeds of sales of art on display by the City. 

During design and installation, the City shall work with the artist to ensure all objectives of display are 

being met.  Once the art is installed, the City shall hold a dedication ceremony to formally introduce the art 

and the artist will be identified with an appropriate physical acknowledgement such as a sign or plaque on 

site. 

Phase Three: Documentation/Evaluation. As needed, the Parks Committee will review the Public Art 

guidelines and provide recommendations to the City Manager and City Council, to determine how the City 

can be improved to better meet the community’s needs and interests, and goals of the public art program, 

especially immediately following a selection. 

Periodically, the City will review the Public Art guidelines to determine how they can be improved to better 

meet the community’s needs and interests, and the goals of the public art program, especially immediately 

following a selection. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES 

• Donated or loaned artwork will include identifying plaques. 

• All donated works will become part of the City’s art collection and as such may be relocated or 
decommissioned. 

• Monetary donations to help fund public art acquisitions including memorial displays may be 

accepted by City, and City Council shall endeavor to plan and budget General Fund outlays for 

purpose of operation, maintenance, replacement and/or purchase of Public Art. 

• Memorial art shall not ordinarily honor a living person, unless that person has made a significant 

and unique contribution to the City’s Public Art Program or to the City. Any nomination and/or 

approval of such a Committee or memorial of a living person must be approved by unanimous 

consent or affirmation of City Council by means roll call vote at a regular meeting of the entire 

sitting members of City Council. A waiting period of at least 1 year from the date of the council 

approval shall proceed any installation activity of such a Committee or memorial for a living 

person. 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

4 

 

• Relocation and/or decommission of the City’s public art is at the sole discretion of the City Council. 

It is recommended and encouraged that any relocation and/or decommission of any public art shall 

be with the written recommendation of the Parks Committee, and with due consideration of: 

➢ The condition or security of the artwork cannot be reasonably guaranteed in its 

present location. 

➢ The art presents a public safety risk or unacceptable hazardous condition to the 

public. 

➢ The artwork is damaged and repair is not feasible or approved by City Council. 

➢ Significant changes in use, character, or actual design of the site of public display. 

This may justify re-evaluation of the art work’s relationship to the site and result 
in relocation or removal. 

➢ The artwork requires excessive maintenance or has failures of design or 

workmanship. 

➢ Any new or existing Right-of-Way or easement access that is determined necessary 

by the City. This may also include activities associated maintenance of public 

property and/or land as performed by the City or its authorized agents. This may 

include activities involved with City grant projects, construction, and/or 

landscaping activities as authorized by the City. 

➢ The City will endeavor to financially support the installation and maintenance of 

its public art whenever possible within the constraints of its adopted annual fiscal 

budget. 

 

Policy adopted by Council Resolution ____________ during the regular meeting held ________ 2020: 

 

____________________ 

Stephanie Wilson 

City Clerk  

 

 

 

 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

1 

 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

PUBLIC ART AT 
LAKE ALLIANCE PARK 

 
Project Summary 

The City of Potterville seeks to commission site-specific artwork for Lake Alliance Park that 

engages citizens and increases public draw to its park amenities. Artists or artist teams are invited 

to submit qualifications and concept designs for the project that include design, fabrication and 

installation of artistic elements. The project shall comprise of a signature piece for the Alliance 

Lake Park entrance with an option for artist to include proposed sites throughout the interior of the 

Park. The design and/or scope of services should be all inclusive of any professional design 

services needed for proper installation, execution and completion of the public art project.  

Project Background 

The City of Potterville (population nearly 2,800) is located just south of Michigan’s State Capital 
on I-69, in Eaton County a thriving community that continually grows in development. It has 

recently completed over 18 million dollars in public infrastructure improvements, as well as 

professional plans with Williams & Works Civil Engineers outlaying “placemaking” activities 
such as placement of public art to increase draw to parks and development Districts throughout 

Potterville - “The City of Helping Hands”. Connecting visitors and local residents to public art is 

a goal (and strategy) of planned “placemaking” activities. Performing these activities at Lake 

Alliance Park, the City’s premier park asset, will magnify the positive results of connecting the 

public to public art. 

Artist Eligibility 

Any artist or team of artists interested in creating an outdoor art, sculpture or series of sculptures 

with 3D elements at Lake Alliance Park is eligible to submit a proposal to the City. The City is an 

equal opportunity employer and provider. All proposed projects must be completed no later than 

September 30th 2020. All eligible applicants shall include a complete proposal with resume 

portfolio and references, and pictures of sample work to the City of Potterville. 

Goals 

Create a 3D piece of public art that is durable and suitable for outdoor environments. Public art 

must be attractive to all ages and demographics. It must be safe and engaging. Public art should 

demonstrate artistic excellence and design. It shall be planned to be completed on time and within 

budget. 

 

http://www.pottervillemi.org/


City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

2 

 

 

Location 

The primary space for placement is a small knoll north west of the Lake Alliance Park entrance 

from Lansing Road. Secondary spaces are available throughout the interior of the park, if requested 

by artist(s) and included in the proposal. If proposed by artist, these secondary sites should 

complement the main public art piece at the entrance of the park and draw public attention from 

heavy traffic area of Lansing Road toward the interior amenities of the park. These include baseball 

and softball facilities, children’s playground, pavilion, nature trails, a concession building, and a 

26-acre lake with boat or kayak launch with fishing piers.  Additional imagery of primary space 

and/or secondary spaces are available upon request.  

Application Requirements 

A narrative and design illustrating the concept of the proposal is required for each submission. 

Provide all information regarding the proposed art work such as dimensions, material(s) to be used, 

source of materials, method to be used to anchor the piece to a foundation or structure (if 

applicable), timeline for completion, budget, projected maintenance needs, etc. 

Key Activities 

Proposals shall include and be responsible for the following: 

Identify artist/artwork that activates park space by responding to community needs, site conditions, 

terrain and existing use patterns. Secure any permits if necessary, from the City and/or Eaton 

County. 

Manage installation of the artwork, and cover all expenses related to fabrication, labor, 

supervision, insurance, and maintenance of the artwork throughout the installation period. 

Return park to its original condition at the end of the installation period. 

All proposal components must be made available in digital format.  

No submission fees. Artists/artist teams may submit more than one application. 

The project budget shall not exceed $10,000 for an artist or team of collaborative artists. The 

budget shall include all fees and expenses associated with the project including any artist fees, 

installation, supplies, materials, maintenance, equipment rental, shipping, storage, freight, travel‐
related expenses, and all other applicable costs. 

Images of previously completed works are required, accompanied by information regarding 

dimensions, materials, budget and location of other public works. Contact information for 

references is encouraged. 

http://www.pottervillemi.org/


City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

3 

 

The submission deadline for Proposal is 4:00 p.m. March 31st 2020. 

ALL QUALIFIED PROPOSALS SHALL BE EMAILED OR FAXED TO THE CITY CLERK at 
cityclerk@pottervillemi.org no later than 4:00 p.m., March 31st 2020. Submittal of proposals by 
US Mail are allowed if made to: 

Potterville City Clerk 
319 N. Nelson Street 
Potterville, MI 48876 

 
The City Clerk shall be the contact for inquiries regarding any aspect of this request for proposal. 
Questions will be accepted until the deadline. All questions or inquiries should be sent via email 
to the City Clerk at cityclerk@pottervillemi.org  
 
Policies 

Artists will retain ownership of design ideas submitted with this proposal. Upon signing of a 

contract between the artist(s) and the City of Potterville, the ownership of the design and the 

artwork produced for the public art shall become the property of the City of Potterville. 

Only full and complete proposals shall be eligible for review. Proposals will be reviewed by the 

City Parks Committee and City Council. City Council shall make final determinations of all 

proposals and final selections of public art.  The City of Potterville is not obligated to award a 

contract from among the proposals received in response to this RFP. Compensation, insurance and 

all other issues associated with the completion of the public art will be included in the contract 

between the artist(s) and the City.  

Site Specifications and Information 

The public art will be installed, maintained and operated by the City at the designated primary site 

on a knoll located NW of the main entrance of the park entrance of Alliance Drive and Lansing 

Road. The public art shall face Lansing Road with clear lines of sight of vehicular traffic, park 

users and pedestrians entering and exiting the park from Alliance Drive. If requested by the 

artist(s), secondary sites in addition to the primary site may be included in the proposal. Secondary 

sites exist throughout the interior park that may be suitable for public art near the park’s interior 
amenities. More information regarding site information may be provided by the City upon request.  

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.pottervillemi.org/
mailto:cityclerk@pottervillemi.org
mailto:cityclerk@pottervillemi.org


City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

4 

 

Lake Alliance - Public Art Primary Site Location 

 

 

http://www.pottervillemi.org/


 

 

City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

January 30, 2020 
 
 
Re: Supporting 2020 Public Art Program 
 
Dear City Business Owner,  
 
 The City of Potterville is working in cooperation with Lansing Economic Area Partnership 
(LEAP) Public Art Program to bring you public art displays around town and Lake Alliance Park. 
With the acquisition of grant funds this year, the City plans to showcase professional artistic 
displays at Lake Alliance Park, and create exciting spaces for the enjoyment of Potterville 
residents, workers, businesses, and visitors. 
 

 The City has applied for a Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for 
Communities Program Grant and a Public Art Policy to guide their public art program.  The first 
installation of public art will be at the entrance to Lake Alliance Park just off Lansing Road. With 
high visibility of traffic and pedestrians present, this site is ideal for visitors to experience exciting 
new professional art. With enough support and enthusiasm, local businesses and surrounding areas 
are expected to benefit from increased draw of the public to Lake Alliance. 

 
 In the future the City plans to place artwork throughout Lake Alliance Park for an Art 

Trail. This is ambitious, and we are asking for your support and assistance with “in kind” donations 
or monetary contributions to help sustain the new Public Art Program.  

 
With your support, the City and LEAP will be able to fulfill “placemaking” goals of 

development and improve the community using art’s interpretive meaning, value and 
characteristics. Please help us support the arts by sending a donation to Potterville City Hall (319 
N. Nelson) with this letter attached, or mail a check to Potterville City Hall, P.O Box 488, 
Potterville, MI 48876 with a memo “public art program”. Contributions provided to the City’s for 
the Public Art Program are tax deductible. If you have questions regarding the City’s Public Art 
Program or Art Policy, please contact Tiffani Schaner, Parks & Recreation Director at 517-645-
7641 and/or email to tschaner@pottervillemi.org.  

 
Thank you for your support and interest. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Tiffani Schaner 
Parks & Recreation Director 
City of Potterville 

mailto:tschaner@pottervillemi.org


 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY POTTERVILLE 
 

UURESOLUTION OF SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF POTTERVILLE GRANT APPLICATION 
TO THE LANSING ECONOMIC AREA PARTNERSHIP (LEAP) PUBLIC ART FOR 
COMMUNITES GRANT PROGRAM WITH GRANT MATCH OF $2,500 AND ADOPTION 
OF A PUBLIC ART POLICY.  
 

At a meeting of the City Council of the City of Potterville (“Authority”), Eaton County, 
Michigan, held at on the _______ day of ____, 2020 at ______ p.m.  
 
PRESENT:   ____________________________________________________________  
 
              ____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    ____________________________________________________________ 
 
             ____________________________________________________________ 
 

The following Resolution was offered by _______________________________ and 
seconded by ________________________________.  
 

WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that public ownership, maintenance and placement 
of art positively impacts the character and quality of life for residents and visitors to the City of 
Potterville; and   

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that adding public art to City parks and open 

spaces is “placemaking” and improves the appeal and attractiveness of public spaces and is 
consistent with goals of professional Plan studies as adopted by City Council; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council supports The City of Potterville Grant Application 2020 to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant Program as enclosed 
as “Exhibit A”; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council adopts the Public Art Policy as required by Lansing Economic 

Area Partnership grant program that includes general guidelines for operating its public art program 
with stated purpose, goals, types of public art, duties of the Parks Committee acting as “Ad-Hoc” Art 
Committee, art selection processes as enclosed as “Exhibit B”; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds value in recommendations and opinions of its Parks 

Committee in matters pertaining to the operation and planned improvements of City Parks and 
recreation; 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that its Parks Committee shall act as the “Ad-Hoc” 

Art Committee as required by Lansing Economic Area Partnership grant program pursuant to the 
Public Art Policy as enclosed as “Exhibit B”; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council shall act as fiduciary agent for its grant application and 

commit to a match of 25% or $2,500 of the maximum grant amount of $10,000 from the Lansing 
Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art Community Grant Program; and 



 

2 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council shall seek contributions for its grant match commitment of at 

least 25% from its component unit of government City Tax Increment Finance Authority as well 
local/regional businesses that share in the common benefit of improving the quality of life of the 
community, and increasing public draw to parks;  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:  

 
1. The City Council approves The City of Potterville Grant Application 2020 to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant 
Program enclosed as “Exhibit A”.  

2. The City Council adopts the Public Art Policy enclosed as “Exhibit B”. 
3. The City Council recognizes that the City Parks Committee shall perform the roles 

and responsibilities as an “Ad-Hoc” Arts Committee pursuant to the adopted Public 
Art Policy, as required by the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public 
Art Community Grant Program. 

4. The City Council shall act as fiduciary agent to The City of Potterville Grant 
Application 2020 to the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for 
Community Grant Program and commit to a match of 25% or $2,500 of the 
maximum grant amount of $10,000 from the Lansing Economic Area Partnership 
(LEAP) Public Art Community Grant Program. 

5. All resolutions or motions and parts of resolutions or motions in conflict with this 
Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.    

 
YEAS:  ____________________________ 
 
NAYS:  ____________________________ 

 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF EATON   )  

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Potterville, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by 
the City Council at a meeting held on the ______ day of _______, 2020, and that said meeting was 
conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the 
Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the 
minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required under the 
Open Meetings Act.   
 
 

_____________________________ 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk 

 
 



1 
 

THE CITY POTTERVILLE TAX INCREMENT FINANCE AUTHORITY (TIFA) 
 

UURESOLUTION OF SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF POTTERVILLE 2020 GRANT 
APPLICATION TO THE LANSING ECONOMIC AREA PARTNERSHIP (LEAP) PUBLIC 
ART FOR COMMUNITES GRANT PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION OF TIFA PUBLIC 
FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,500 IN MATCH FOR THE CITY’s GRANT 
APPLICATION. 
 

At a meeting of the City of Potterville Tax Increment Finance Authority (“TIFA”), Eaton 
County, Michigan, held at on the _______ day of ____, 2020 at ______ p.m.  
 
PRESENT:   ____________________________________________________________  
 
              ____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    ____________________________________________________________ 
 
             ____________________________________________________________ 
 

The following Resolution was offered by _______________________________ and 
seconded by ________________________________.  
 

WHEREAS, TIFA recognizes the City of Potterville’s public ownership, maintenance and 
placement of art positively impacts the character and quality of life of residents and visitors to the 
Development Area of TIFA; and   

 
WHEREAS, TIFA recognizes that contributing public funds to the installation of public art at 

Lake Alliance Park and other public spaces within the TIFA Development Area, is “placemaking” 
and improves the appeal and attractiveness of public space; and 

 
WHEREAS, “placemaking” within the TIFA Development Area is consistent with stated 

goals of the TIFA Development Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, TIFA supports the City Council’s Grant Application 2020 to the Lansing 

Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant Program as enclosed as 
“Exhibit A”; and 

 
WHEREAS, TIFA is a component unit of government of the City of Potterville that will 

benefit as a result of the installation of public art at Lake Alliance Park pursuant to a City grant 
acquisition from the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Communities Grant 
Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, TIFA commits to provide the City of Potterville $2,500 in TIFA public funds as 

a match for the City’s 2020 grant application to Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public 
Art for Communities Grant Program; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:  



2 

 
1. The City Tax Increment Finance Authority supports the City 2020 Grant Application 

to the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant 
Program enclosed as “Exhibit A”. 

2. The City Tax Increment Finance Authority supports the placement of public art at 
Lake Alliance Park and public spaces within the TIFA Development Area. 

3. TIFA determines that the placement of public art by the City is “placemaking” and 
consistent with stated goals of the TIFA Development Plan. 

4. The City Tax Increment Finance Authority commits to provide the City of Potterville 
$2,500 in TIFA public funds to be used as match for the City’s 2020 grant 
application to Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for 
Communities Grant Program; 

 
 YEAS:  ____________________________ 

 
NAYS:  ____________________________ 

 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF EATON   )  

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Potterville, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by 
the City Council at a meeting held on the ______ day of _______, 2020, and that said meeting was 
conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the 
Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the 
minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required under the 
Open Meetings Act.   
 
 

_____________________________ 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk 

 
 



   

1000 S Washington Avenue, Suite #201 

Lansing, Michigan  48910-1682 

P: (517) 702-3387 | F: (517) 702-3390 

purelansing.com 

  

Request for Proposals 

Public Art for Communities 2020 
 

The Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) is currently accepting proposals from municipalities, 

businesses and organizations within Ingham, Eaton and Clinton counties interested in receiving funding to 

commission and install a piece of public art. The LEAP Public Art for Communities program with additional 

support from the PNC Foundation will award three grants of $10,000 each for the municipality, business or 

organization to commission, create and install the piece of public art for year-round public display.   

Arts and cultural strategies help to reveal and enhance the underlying identity — the unique meaning, 

value, and character — of the physical and social space of a community. In this way, the community’s 
character can be expressed through the activation of a place.  

LEAP believes that these public art installations positively impact our communities through: 

• Furthering our image and place into one of sophistication and creativity, exhibiting world-class arts and 

cultural opportunities. 

• Strategically and specifically positioning various forms of public art to spur economic growth and 

attract/retain business and talent. 

• Institutionalizing policies and procedures on how arts and culture can be successfully implemented 

within a municipal body. 

The most successful applicants will identify a key, central, public location that is highly visible or 

recognizable to a significant and regular flow of foot and car traffic. Beyond visibility, we want the public to 

enjoy the art and feel that the placement greatly enhances the physical aesthetic. Applicants should 

consider how the community will utilize, interact and feel ownership over the piece. The perfect piece 

should be specific to the community and its residents. 

Definition of Public Art: Public Art is a uniquely created piece of physical artwork, such as a sculpture, 

statue, mural, or bike rack that will permanently endure the site, activities, and weather. It must not be 

political or obscene in nature.               

Eligibility 

• The request for proposal is open to any municipality, business or organization located in Ingham, 

Eaton or Clinton counties. 

• Scoring of applications will be weighted toward LEAP community and business members. 

• Applications must be submitted by a representative of the community’s municipal body acting on 
behalf of the municipal body. 

o If a neighborhood organization plans to apply, they must partner with and secure a letter of 

support from their municipal governing body.  



   

 
Page | 2 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) · www.purelansing.com  

 1000 South Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Lansing, MI 48910 · (517) 702-3387 

 

o If a business plans to apply, they must partner with and secure a letter of support from their 

municipal governing body. 

o Municipal governments will serve as fiduciary agents.  

• Applicants need to show the existence and/or adoption of a public art policy for their community.  

The policy must be in progress at the time of the application and adopted by the time the award is 

made. 

o Two templates of public art policies are available at: www.purelansing.com/publicart. 

• Art pieces must be created by an artist with additional points awarded for artists from Michigan and 

specifically the tri-county region. 

• Ability to complete this project within LEAP’s fiscal year, with an unveiling event taking place prior 
to October 31, 2020. 

Deadline 

The deadline for submission is 4:00 p.m. Friday, January 31, 2020.  Please email applications to: Dillon 

Rush, Tri-County Development & Placemaking Manager, dillon@purelansing.com. Do feel encouraged to 

contact Dillon prior to the deadline with questions and/or ideas! 

Submission 

Please include the following items in your written request: 

• Evidence of existence and/or adoption of a public art policy for the community (if in process, please 

explain when it is planned to be adopted).  

o Plans to seek matching dollars from the private sector or community in the form of crowd 

funding or contribution (matching dollars are not required but encouraged). 

o Plans to seek in-kind support for the project in the form of landscaping, maintenance, 

lighting, etc.  

• Narrative of the municipality’s efforts and priority of placemaking initiatives. 

• Description on how the public art piece will contribute to the distinct identity for the area and 

specific place(ment). 

o Examples of other placemaking initiatives in the community. 

• Discussion of how the art piece located at a specific place will enhance business development 

efforts and attract/retain talent and new businesses to that specific area. 

• Description, including photo or map, of the location of the public art piece. 

• Information related to the visibility of the location (traffic counts, pedestrian counts, etc.). 

• Submission of a site prep outline, physical foundation development, continuous maintenance plan, 

insurance/liability issues and final installation budget and plan. 

• Description of community plans to jury the artists/art pieces. 

o Suggestions for committee members that will draft the RFP and/or jury the pieces. 

http://www.purelansing.com/
http://www.purelansing.com/publicart
mailto:dillon@purelansing.com


   

 
Page | 3 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) · www.purelansing.com  

 1000 South Washington Avenue, Suite 201, Lansing, MI 48910 · (517) 702-3387 

 

• Timetable for the commission and installation of the public art piece (Timeline suggestion, see 

below.) 

o LEAP RFP Open for Submissions: October 11, 2019 – January 31, 2020 

o Review of received proposals: January 31 – February 15, 2020 

o Press Event/Announcement: Week of March 1, 2020 

o Funded Community Art Committees Convene to write Artist RFP: Week of March 1, 2020 

o Community Call to Artists RFP Open for Submissions: March - May 2020 

o Choose Artist/Enter into contract with Artist: May 2020 

o Fabrication of Art Piece: June - September 2020 

o Unveiling of Art Piece/Press Event: October 2020 

 

Selection Process 

LEAP’s Placemaking Workgroup will serve as the review panel that will recommend submission(s) to LEAP’s 
President & CEO for award approval. 

Selection Criteria 

The selection will be based on the following criteria: 

• Does the community have a public art policy in place or in process? 

• How engaged is the community in creating a sense of place for the region? 

• Does the project increase the sense of place for resident and visitors? 

• Does this project impact potential business investment and talent in the area? 

• Is the placement of the piece in a high visibility location? 

• Does the community plan to offer a match/in kind donation to the grant dollars? 

• Is the applicant a LEAP member? 

Award 

The awards will be announced publicly at a press event in early March.  Applicants will be notified prior to 

the public announcement. Grantees will receive 50% of the grant dollars at the time of contract with LEAP 

and 50% upon completion of the final report and installation of the piece. Applicants must not publicly 

reveal notification of award without written consent by LEAP or a LEAP-led public announcement. 

 

 

Questions 

Please direct any questions to Dillon Rush at the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) at 

dillon@purelansing.com or 517.331.0069. 

http://www.purelansing.com/
mailto:dillon@purelansing.com


 
 
 
 

The City of Potterville 2020 Grant Application to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Communities Program. 

 
 

January 31st 2020 



Lake Alliance - Public Art Primary Site Location 

 



1 
 

City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

January 30th 2020 
 
To:  Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) 
 
From:  Tiffani Schaner, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
Subject: 2020 City Application to the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public 

Art for Communities Grant Program. Deadline January 31st 2020 
 
 
Introduction: 

 

The purpose of this project is to present engaging tools to increase the public’s draw to the City 
and its premier park at Lake Alliance Park. This park is unique to the area, and hosts annual softball 
leagues and tournaments known to attract hundreds of visitors and amateur softball participants in 
a single weekend. It is located within the City’s Tax Increment Finance Authority’s Development 
area that has recently finished construction of a baseball stadium and field, adjacent to the high 
traffic corridor of Lansing Road.    
 
Public Art Policy: 

 

To help guide the new Public Art Program, the City has generated a Public Art Policy to be 
included for adoption on its next public agenda. The City Council and Board of Directors of the 
City Tax Increment Finance Authority (TIFA) have also scheduled Resolutions of Support 
including match amounts, to appear on their public agendas for adoption in February. Drafts of 
these Resolutions shall be enclosed with this application. If an award of the LEAP Public Art for 
Communities is provided to the City, it would kick start a new Public Art Program and satisfy 
“placemaking” goals and objectives of professional plans including the 5 Year Parks Plan, 
Community Master Plan, and TIFA Development Plan.    
 
The City of Potterville has an active Parks Committee that shall act as the City “Ad-Hoc 
Committee” for its Public Art Program. The Parks Committee will collaborate with the City 
Manager and City Council to display and attract local artist(s) and art piece(s) under guidance of 
an adopted Public Art Policy, also provided with this application.  
 
Funding and Support:  

 

The Parks Committee, City Council and TIFA Board Members of Directors are pursuing this grant 
cooperatively with intent to fund a match of 25% of funds upon approval of Resolutions of Support 
(w/match amounts). Again, these Resolutions are scheduled to appear on their public agendas 
February 4th, February 17th and February 20th respectively. Upon acceptance of the grant, the City 
plans to seek matching dollars with a combination of in-kind services though a letter writing 
campaign and crowdfunding from residents, and local and regional businesses owners who may 



2 
 

benefit from increased in public draw to the area. Regional businesses include large corporations 
such as Walmart, Team One Chevrolet, Dick’s Sporting Goods, and Tractor Supply.  
 
Social Media community is vital to the decision-making process of the City. Interaction and input 
it receives from the public, go hand in hand with developmental goals and planning. The City 
intend to approach its social media followers and apply known crowdfunding mechanisms such as 
Facebook and GoFundme.com to supplement the Public Art Program. Local markets can be 
earmarked with this type of campaign and include 54 active businesses, organizations and 
associations. This includes the Potterville Masonic Lodge, Chamber of Commerce, McDonald’s 
Corporation, Colonial Estates to name a few. Private contributions to the City’s Public Art 
Program are qualified as a tax-deductible. 
 
Timeline for Commission and Installation: 

 

For the installation of a public art piece, we have laid out the below timeline: 
 

 LEAP “RFP” Open for Submission: October 11, 2019 - January 31, 2020 

 Review of received proposals: January 31, 2020 - February 15, 2020 

 Press Event/Announcement: March 2020 

 Funded Community Art Committees Convene to write Artist RFP: Week of March 3, 2020 

 Community Call to Artists RFP Open for Submissions: March- May 2020 

 Choose Artist/Enter into contract with Artist: May 2020 

 Fabrication of Art Piece: June- September 2020 

 Unveiling of Art Piece/Press Event: October 2020 
 
Placemaking Efforts: 

 

Potterville is located just south of Michigan’s State Capital on I-69 in Eaton County with a thriving 
community of population growth and development. It has recently completed over 18 million 
dollars in public infrastructure improvements, and numerous professional plans with Williams & 
Works Civil Engineers that outlay “placemaking” activities like public art installation as a means 
to increase business development and attract visitors to Potterville - “The City of Helping Hands”. 
To connect residents and visitors to public art is a major goal (and strategy) of known 
“placemaking” efforts planned by the City and TIFA. Doing so at Lake Alliance Park will magnify 
positive results of this placemaking by connecting the most people to art. 
 

Art Location: 

 

A high priority is placing art at the entrance of Lake Alliance Park. It would be installed on the 
North West side of the main entrance on a knoll, visible from both directions of traffic on Lansing 
Road.  This is an ideal location as it will bring more visitors as they commute to their day to day 
travels in and around Potterville. City has additional plans of placing artwork throughout the park 
that draws visitors toward Lake Alliance. The City’s Lake Alliance Park entrance has been 
identified as an ideal space where art could increase the number of people visiting the park, and 
promote a culture of public art, creativity, and feel of a shared experience among park users. Refer 
to the enclosed map of the entrance of the park to see this location. The entrance to the park has 
potential with line of sight to Lansing Road, but lacks excitement, engagement, and a certain 
inviting feel. The City and TIFA plan to improve the entrance by making it more inviting and 
welcoming to all visitors.  



3 
 

Lake Alliance Park sits on approximately 66 acres with a 24-acre lake that is open to the public 
year-round. Amenities include a lighted softball complex, a lighted high school regulation baseball 
field, non-motorized trails, nature trails, pavilion shelters, a Disc Golf Course and more. As stated, 
softball and baseball tournaments are held regularly on weekends with visitors from all over 
Michigan and the Mid-West. It receives a high volume of traffic (vehicles and pedestrians) from 
tournaments and programs during the Spring, Summer and Fall months of the year.  
 
The traffic count in 2018 from MDOT’s NTFA map shows that an Annual Average Daily Traffic 
(AADT) of 6,278 which is an increase from 2017 of 6,234. For the 2019 year, the traffic count has 
yet to be accounted for, but the NTFA map shows that the AADT for 2019 is 6,538.  The 
tournaments and programs that take place at Lake Alliance Park has seen an increase in pedestrians 
as well. For the 2019 year, the City recorded 337 teams for tournaments that consist of an average 
16 players per team. This is a total pedestrian count about 5,392, that is in addition to our recreation 
programs with about 100 pedestrians. Both counts equal a total of about 5,492 park users. In 2018, 
the ball tournaments held at Lake Alliance saw 303 teams with 16 players per team for a pedestrian 
count of 4,848 in addition to our programs that brought in about 60 pedestrians for a total of about 
4,908. This does not include daily visitors that come to the park. As noted, this park is highly 
utilized, a wide variety of targeted demographics come and go. Adding art will promote a new and 
innovative culture to the park. 
 

Site Preparation Outline: 

 

The physical foundation development of the art is planned to be constructed with compacted 
aggregated, asphalt or concrete displays pedestals or pads, depending on the artwork. The artists 
proposal shall clearly outline what suits it for display and maintenance. Regular maintenance will 
be performed by the DPW Staff in combination with private contractors as funded by the City 
General Fund and Parks Fund.   
 

Maintenance Outline: 

 

Regular park maintenance and security are in place and funded by the City of Potterville General 
Fund. City Departments of the General Fund are funded by City’s General Operation Tax and 
development funds as provided from time to time by the City TIFA. Together, these resources are 
planned to maintain Lake Alliance Park and public art to a high standard. DPW Staff makes routine 
visits and perform maintenance checks to Lake Alliance Park during operation hours. Police patrol 
during the weekdays and weekends when the park is in high use. Art pieces as defined in a “RFP” 
and/or any proposal from the artist will be under the City’s insurance/liability upon final 
installation. The City has a coverage of $25,000 for damages to City property and a deductible of 
$250. The art piece, once processed, will be covered in the City’s general liability insurance policy. 
If additional coverage is needed for the art, it will be determined by all parties involved as to what 
is deemed the best additional coverage. As for the budget, an anticipated total of about $12,500 
could be expected for each grant award. Maintenance and lighting expenses could be appropriated 
to the existing Park budget. The City may choose to plan to contribute general DPW activities 
associated with materials and preparation of its public art site - whether that is a podium needed, 
cement slab, or installation of a plaque after a project is completed.  Per the Public Art Policy, the 
City would plan to maintain it public art pieces. 
 
 

 



4 
 

Conclusion: 

 

The primary goal of this project is to generate “placemaking” for increased business development, 
and to provide the City with new and engaging tools to improve its public spaces. The intent is to 
perform this task via the promotion of public art, creativity, and a feel of shared experience among 
local and regional park users.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Tiffani Schaner 
Parks & Recreation Director  
City of Potterville 
 
 
 
CC: Aaron Sheridan, City Manager 
 Bruce Kring, City Mayor 
 Dustin Twichell, City TIFA Chairman 
 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

1 

 

PUBLIC ART POLICY 

PURPOSE 

The placement of public art adds to the unique character and quality of life of a community. Public art can 

straighten civic identify, community pride, and create a cultural economy.  By adding public art to an 

otherwise ordinary space, it can introduce a surprising, unexpected and energizing element. Public art has 

the capacity to humanize our urban and suburban environment. 

Public art can be the foundation for the creation of a “sense of place” in a public space.  Placemaking as it 

is known in planning is known to promote people’s health, happiness, and wellbeing.  Developing a sense 

of place helps people identify with their region and with each other and thus creates a sense of community.  

Create placemaking animates public spaces, rejuvenates structures and streetscapes, improves local 

business viability and public safety, and brings diverse people together to be inspired. 

Ultimately, the goal of placemaking and the use of public art is to create a feeling that our community is a 

special place and distinct from anywhere else. With this policy, the City Parks Committee and City Council 

seeks to provide opportunity for creating exciting and attractive public spaces that are used and enjoyed by 

Potterville residents, workers, businesses, and visitors. 

GOALS 

The Community is committed to providing public art of exceptional quality that adds to the community 

vibrancy and identity. The Community strives to: 

 Use public art to help express the Community’s history and cultural heritage. 

 Foster the public’s understanding and enjoyment of the public art. 

 Use public art as a means to foster the community’s sense of spirit, pride, and development. 

 Enrich the quality of life for the community and the region by creating exciting, appealing, and 

harmonious public spaces. 

 Integrate public art into new community facilities. 

 Enhance the Community image locally, regionally and nationally. 

 Recognize public art’s contribution in economic development. 

PUBLIC ART COVERED 

Public art, as defined by this policy, encompasses the broadest definition of visual art including the 

imaginative use and interplay of all artistic disciplines. Public art determined by council to be governed by 

this policy shall be visually or physically accessible to the public. This shall include all art acquired by 

County Funds/Grants, donated to the Community and/or provided by a private entity for community benefit. 

PARKS COMMITTEE 

As needed, the Parks Committee shall review the City’s public art policy activities and provide 

recommendations to the Parks & Recreation Director, City Manager and/or City Council regarding the 

Public Art Policy. For the purposes of the Policy, The Parks Committee shall expect to provide informed 

input and written recommendations, regarding determinations of the Policy as provided by the City 

Manager and City Council.  Recommendation of the Parks Committee may include but are not limited to 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

2 

 

public art site locations, releasing RFPs for artwork, selection of winning artists and/or awards, contracts 

with artists of public art, fabrication, assembly, placement, and/or coordination and dedication of art pieces.  

The Parks Committee shall be a recommending body to the City Manager and City Council for the purposes 

of this Policy.  The Parks Committee should be comprised of an informed and diverse group of citizens 

representing Potterville City neighborhoods, businesses, associations, artists, architects, landscape 

architects, engineers, urban designers, etc. All members of the Parks Committee should be free of conflict 

of interest or the potential for financial gain. 

ART SELECTION PROCESS 

The phases below outline a suggested program for carrying out a public art project.  These phases are 

intended to be guidelines, as it is recognized that each Committee of public art is unique, and adjustments 

will need to be tailored to each individual project. 

Phase One: Creation of Request for Proposals (RFP). The City Manager shall seek written recommendation 

of the Parks Committee for a Public Art RFP(s) to be reviewed and considered by City Council for 

approval/denial. In regard to this Policy, all authorized RFPs for Public Art Projects must be presented to 

Parks Committee and approved by City Council. 

 Prior to the draft RFP by the City Manager, the Parks Committee shall meet to assess the 

specific needs, requirements and expectations of the public art installation.  It is 

recommended that the Parks Committee establish scoring criteria to be included in any 

Public Art RFP. This scoring criteria should be provided to the City Manager for inclusion 

in the RFP draft to be considered for approval/denial by City Council. 

 With agreement and approval on the RFP and Public Art Project, the Manager shall send 

out the approved RFP to artists that includes project specifics regarding the location, style 

or nature of the placement, type and theme of project, and a budget.  The RFP shall be 

distributed to artists locally, throughout Michigan and nationally, to encourage equal 

opportunity and cultural diversity. 

 Applicants may be asked for the following: 

 Small scale model or rough draft of a three-dimensional work (when appropriate 

as determined by the City) or complete drawing of a two-dimensional work. 

 Drawings or photographs that demonstrate the relationship of the artwork to the 

site. 

 Material samples for the artwork and any relevant construction materials. 

 Installation details.  

 Description of routine maintenance and estimate of maintenance costs 

 Artist’s resume. 

 Statement of Interest of the project from Artist. 

 Budget. 

Phase Two: Artist Selection and Contracts.  Proposed gifts, loans, creation, and selection of Public Art will 

be reviewed by the City Council with a recommendation of the Parks Committee for final action. The 

following criteria will be used in any recommendation: 

 Use of local artists. 

 Quality and condition of the artwork. 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

3 

 

 Context in the Community’s collection. For example, Does the artwork enhance the existing 

collection and/or add diversity of inventory or art on hand. Or both? 

 How does the piece engage the public? 

 Are the materials appropriate/safe/beneficial for public use? All age groups and demographics? 

 Is the piece more or less susceptible to vandalism or graffiti? 

 Durability of artwork. 

 Ability to maintain the artwork. 

 Aesthetic merit. 

City Public Art Contracts shall be agreed to in writing and authorized by all interested parties regarding 

ownership and/or use of Public Art. They shall be considered legal contracts and executed by the City 

Manager upon review of the City Attorney and authorization of City Council. Art ownership shall be 

transferred to the City at the time of installation with no rights remaining with the artists. The contract 

should protect the City from the artists duplicating the exact work for sale to others unless agreed to in the 

Contract with appropriate considerations for proceeds of sales of art on display by the City. 

During design and installation, the City shall work with the artist to ensure all objectives of display are 

being met.  Once the art is installed, the City shall hold a dedication ceremony to formally introduce the art 

and the artist will be identified with an appropriate physical acknowledgement such as a sign or plaque on 

site. 

Phase Three: Documentation/Evaluation. As needed, the Parks Committee will review the Public Art 

guidelines and provide recommendations to the City Manager and City Council, to determine how the City 

can be improved to better meet the community’s needs and interests, and goals of the public art program, 

especially immediately following a selection. 

Periodically, the City will review the Public Art guidelines to determine how they can be improved to better 

meet the community’s needs and interests, and the goals of the public art program, especially immediately 

following a selection. 

GENERAL GUIDELINES 

 Donated or loaned artwork will include identifying plaques. 

 All donated works will become part of the City’s art collection and as such may be relocated or 

decommissioned. 

 Monetary donations to help fund public art acquisitions including memorial displays may be 

accepted by City, and City Council shall endeavor to plan and budget General Fund outlays for 

purpose of operation, maintenance, replacement and/or purchase of Public Art. 

 Memorial art shall not ordinarily honor a living person, unless that person has made a significant 

and unique contribution to the City’s Public Art Program or to the City. Any nomination and/or 

approval of such a Committee or memorial of a living person must be approved by unanimous 

consent or affirmation of City Council by means roll call vote at a regular meeting of the entire 

sitting members of City Council. A waiting period of at least 1 year from the date of the council 

approval shall proceed any installation activity of such a Committee or memorial for a living 

person. 



City of Potterville 
319 N. Nelson St.  PO Box 488  Potterville, MI  48876  Phone: (517) 645-7641 

Fax: (517) 645-7810  www.pottervillemi.org 
 

4 

 

 Relocation and/or decommission of the City’s public art is at the sole discretion of the City Council. 

It is recommended and encouraged that any relocation and/or decommission of any public art shall 

be with the written recommendation of the Parks Committee, and with due consideration of: 

 The condition or security of the artwork cannot be reasonably guaranteed in its 

present location. 

 The art presents a public safety risk or unacceptable hazardous condition to the 

public. 

 The artwork is damaged and repair is not feasible or approved by City Council. 

 Significant changes in use, character, or actual design of the site of public display. 

This may justify re-evaluation of the art work’s relationship to the site and result 

in relocation or removal. 

 The artwork requires excessive maintenance or has failures of design or 

workmanship. 

 Any new or existing Right-of-Way or easement access that is determined necessary 

by the City. This may also include activities associated maintenance of public 

property and/or land as performed by the City or its authorized agents. This may 

include activities involved with City grant projects, construction, and/or 

landscaping activities as authorized by the City. 

 The City will endeavor to financially support the installation and maintenance of 

its public art whenever possible within the constraints of its adopted annual fiscal 

budget. 

 

Policy adopted by Council Resolution ____________ during the regular meeting held ________ 2020: 

 

____________________ 

Stephanie Wilson 

City Clerk  

 

 

 

 



 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY POTTERVILLE 

 

Resolution No. 20-0220-05 

 

UURESOLUTION OF SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF POTTERVILLE GRANT APPLICATION 

TO THE LANSING ECONOMIC AREA PARTNERSHIP (LEAP) PUBLIC ART FOR 

COMMUNITES GRANT PROGRAM WITH GRANT MATCH OF $2,500 AND ADOPTION 

OF A PUBLIC ART POLICY.  

 

At a meeting of the City Council of the City of Potterville (“Authority”), Eaton County, 
Michigan, held at on the 20th day of February, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.  
 
PRESENT:   ____________________________________________________________  
 
              ____________________________________________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    ____________________________________________________________ 
 
             ____________________________________________________________ 
 

The following Resolution was offered by _______________________________ and 
seconded by ________________________________.  
 

WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that public ownership, maintenance and placement 
of art positively impacts the character and quality of life for residents and visitors to the City of 
Potterville; and   

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that adding public art to City parks and open 

spaces is “placemaking” and improves the appeal and attractiveness of public spaces and is 
consistent with goals of professional Plan studies as adopted by City Council; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council supports The City of Potterville Grant Application 2020 to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant Program as enclosed 
as “Exhibit A”; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council adopts the Public Art Policy as required by Lansing Economic 

Area Partnership grant program that includes general guidelines for operating its public art program 
with stated purpose, goals, types of public art, duties of the Parks Committee acting as “Ad-Hoc” Art 
Committee, art selection processes as enclosed as “Exhibit B”; and  

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds value in recommendations and opinions of its Parks 

Committee in matters pertaining to the operation and planned improvements of City Parks and 
recreation; 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council recognizes that its Parks Committee shall act as the “Ad-Hoc” 

Art Committee as required by Lansing Economic Area Partnership grant program pursuant to the 
Public Art Policy as enclosed as “Exhibit B”; and  

 



 

2 

WHEREAS, The City Council shall act as fiduciary agent for its grant application and 
commit to a match of 25% or $2,500 of the maximum grant amount of $10,000 from the Lansing 
Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art Community Grant Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council shall seek contributions for its grant match commitment of at 

least 25% from its component unit of government City Tax Increment Finance Authority as well 
local/regional businesses that share in the common benefit of improving the quality of life of the 
community, and increasing public draw to parks;  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:  

 
1. The City Council approves The City of Potterville Grant Application 2020 to the 

Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for Community Grant 
Program enclosed as “Exhibit A”.  

2. The City Council adopts the Public Art Policy enclosed as “Exhibit B”. 
3. The City Council recognizes that the City Parks Committee shall perform the roles 

and responsibilities as an “Ad-Hoc” Arts Committee pursuant to the adopted Public 
Art Policy, as required by the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public 
Art Community Grant Program. 

4. The City Council shall act as fiduciary agent to The City of Potterville Grant 
Application 2020 to the Lansing Economic Area Partnership (LEAP) Public Art for 
Community Grant Program and commit to a match of 25% or $2,500 of the 
maximum grant amount of $10,000 from the Lansing Economic Area Partnership 
(LEAP) Public Art Community Grant Program. 

5. All resolutions or motions and parts of resolutions or motions in conflict with this 
Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.    

 
YEAS:  ______________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS:  ______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN    ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF EATON   )  

 
I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Potterville, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of certain proceedings taken by 
the City Council at a meeting held on the 20th day of February, 2020, and that said meeting was 
conducted and public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the 
Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the 
minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required under the 
Open Meetings Act.   

 
 
Stephanie Wilson, City Clerk _____________________________________ 



ZBA Applicants 

 

 Ronald Norman 

 Larisa Ballard 

 Katherine Schmidt 

 Jeff Bussard 

 Jonathan McNett 

 John Davidson 

 Joseph Bristol 

 Michaela Schwartz 

 

 

TIFA Applicants 

 

 Katherine Schmidt 

 Jeff Bussard 

 John Davidson 

 Jonathon McNett 

 

 

Board of Review 

 

 Doug Hartson 

 John Davidson 

 

 

Housing Commission 

 

 Hannah Myers 

 Chris Whipple 

 

Planning Commission 

 

 Jeff Bussard 

 John Davidson 




























	Minutes January 16, 2020.pdf (p.1-3)
	February 20, Manager Report.pdf (p.4-6)
	Treasurer Report February 2020.pdf (p.9-15)
	City Clerk Report February 2020.pdf (p.16)
	February 2020 AP.pdf (p.17-20)
	BTFDjanuary2020.pdf (p.21)
	February 2020 DPW Report.pdf (p.22)
	Parks Admin Report-February.pdf (p.23-24)
	ZBA Report February 2020 Communication to Council.pdf (p.25)
	ZBA Resolution.pdf (p.26-27)
	2019-2020 Budget Amendment Adopt Resolution.pdf (p.28)
	2019-2020 Tax Millage & Appropriation Act Amendments.pdf (p.29-30)
	Resolution 20-0220-04 Resolution to Establish Election Inspectors and Receiving Board for the City of Potterville March 2020 Election.pdf (p.31-32)
	Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses membership renewal cover letter.pdf (p.33)
	Potterville Area Chamber of Businesses membership renewal form.pdf (p.34)
	The City of Potterville 2020 Application to LEAP Public Art for Communities Grant.pdf (p.36-57)
	FRONT PAGE - LAKE ALLIANCE PARK ENTRANCE.pdf (p.1)
	AERIAL MAP OF PRIMARY SITE.pdf (p.2)
	PUBLIC ART WRITTEN REQUEST.pdf (p.3-6)
	APPLICATION SIGNATURE PAGE.pdf (p.7)
	PUBLIC ART POLICY.pdf (p.8-11)
	RFP CALL TO ARTISTS.pdf (p.12-15)
	ART BUSINESS LETTER.pdf (p.16)
	CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT AND MATCH.pdf (p.17-18)
	TIFA RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT AND MATCH.pdf (p.19-20)
	PAFC-RFP-2020.pdf (p.21-23)

	Public Art Grant Applicaiton Image 2.pdf (p.58)
	AERIAL MAP OF PRIMARY SITE.pdf (p.2)

	Exhibit A PUBLIC ART WRITTEN REQUEST.pdf (p.59-62)
	Exhibit B PUBLIC ART POLICY.pdf (p.63-66)
	FRONT PAGE - LAKE ALLIANCE PARK ENTRANCE.pdf (p.1)

